The Past Simple

The past of the verb TO BE (am/ is/ are) is was/ were:

I/ he/ she/ it 

WAS

We/ you/ they

WERE

am/is (present) — was (past):

· I am tired. (now)
                  
I was tired last night.

· Where is Ann? (now)                                Where was Ann yesterday? 

· The weather is good today.                       The weather was good last week.

are (present) — were (past):

· You are late. (now)                                   You were late yesterday.

· They aren’t here. (now)                           They weren’t here last Sunday
positive 
negative 
question 

	I 

He

She

It


	was


	late.
	I 

He

She

It


	was not

(wasn’t)
	late
	Was
	I

he

she

it
	late?

	We

You 

They


	were


	
	We

You 

They


	were not

(weren’t)
	
	Were


	we        

you

they
	


Practice

· Last year Rachel …………….. 22, so she …………….. 23 now.

· When I …………….. a child, I …………….. afraid of dogs.

· We …………….. hungry after the journey but we …………….. tired.

· The hotel …………….. comfortable but it …………….. expensive.

· …………….. the weather good when you …………….. on holiday?

· Those shoes are nice. …………….. they expensive?

· Why …………….. the meeting end so late?

· What …………….. the reason for the management failure?

short answers

	Yes,
	I/he/she/it was.


	No,
	I/he/she/it wasn’t.

	
	We/you/they were.


	
	we/you/they weren’t.


· ‘Were you late?’ ‘No, I wasn’t.’

· ‘…………….. Ted at work yesterday?’ ‘Yes, he ……………...

· ‘…………….. Sue and Steve at the party?’ ‘No, they ……………...’


· I very much ENJOYED the party.

· Mr Edwards DIED ten years ago.

· When I LIVED in Manchester, I WORKED in a bank.

Very often the past simple ends in –ed:


They
 watch

 television every evening.

 (present simple)

They 
watched
 television yesterday evening.

 (past simple)

work —worked 
clean —cleaned 
start —started
stay —stayed

arrive —arrived 
dance —danced
· We ………………. (invite) them to our party but they ………………. (decide) not to come.

· The police……………….  (stop) me on my way home last night.

· She……………….  (pass) her examination because she……………….  (study) very hard.

Many important verbs are irregular. This means that the past simple does not end in –ED. 

· Leave (
Left
(
We all LEFT the party at 11 o’clock.

· Go
(
Went
(
Yesterday I WENT to London to see a friend of mine.

· Cost (
Cost
(
This house COST £35,000 in 1980.

· I usually get up early but this morning I got up at 9.30.

· We did a lot of work yesterday.

· Caroline went to the cinema three times last week.

· Jim came into the room, took off his coat and sat down.

Practice

· I clean my teeth every morning. This morning I …………….. my teeth.

· Terry …………….. (to work) in a bank from 1986 to 1993.

· Yesterday it …………….. (to rain) all morning. It……………..  (stop) at lunchtime.

· We …………….. (enjoy) the party last night. We danced a lot and …………….. (talk) to a lot of people.

· The computer system …………….. (fail) last night.

In past simple questions and negatives we use DID/ DIDN’T + infinitive (do/ open/ rain etc.):

It rainED  (
DID it RAIN?

It DIDN’T RAIN

Practice

· Ann:
DID you GO out last night, Tom?

Tom:
Yes, I went to the cinema. But I DIDN’T ENJOY the film.

· When …………….. Mr Edwards DIE?

· What …………….. you DO at the week-end?

· We …………….. (Invite, not) her to the party, so she DIDN’T ……………..(come).

· Why DIDN’T you …………….. (supply) me with the steel sheets?

· Where …………….. you put the check-list of compents that need changing?


NOTE: that we normally use DID/ DIDN’T with HAVE

· DID you HAVE time to write the letter?

· I DIDN’T HAVE enough money to buy anything to eat.

Question
Negative

	Verb
	subject
	Verb (infinitive)
	Subject
	Verb (p.p.)
	negation
	Verb (infinitive)

	Did
	I

you

he

she

it

we

you

they
	work ….?
	I

you

he

she

it

we

you

they
	Did
	not
	work…..

	Was / were
	
	
	
	was/were
	
	

	Could
	
	
	
	Could
	
	



Practice
The Witch of Wall Street

Hetty Robinson learnt all about money when she was very young. As a child, she read the financial pages of the newspaper to her wealthy father. Her father died when Hetty was 30 years old and she inherited $1 million. When she herself died in 1916, she left a fortune of almost $100 million to her two children.

Hetty made her money on the New York stock exchange. She was a financial genius. She made money so easily that people called her the Witch of Wall Street. But although she was one of the richest women in the world, she was very mean. She counted every cent and she spent as little as possible. She didn’t own a house, because she didn’t want to pay property taxes. So she and her children lived in cheap hotels.

She spent almost nothing on clothes, and wore the same long black dress every day. She washed it herself, but to save soap she only washed the bottom of the dress, where it touched the ground. Other people had their own offices, but Hetty used a desk in the bank where she kept her money, because it didn’t cost anything. She sat in the bank and ate her sandwiches while she bought and sold stocks and shares. If the bank complained, she just moved all her money to another bank.

Hetty’s family paid the price for her meanness. When she was 33 she married a millionaire, Edward Green and they had two children. Green, however, lost all his money, so Hetty left him. When her son, Ned, injured his knee Hetty didn’t want to pay for a doctor, so she took him to a free hospital for poor people. Unfortunately the doctor knew that Hetty was rich and he asked for money. Hetty refused and took the boy away. His leg didn’t get better and two years later doctors removed it.

But eventually Ned got his revenge. At the age of 81 Hetty had an argument with a shop assistant about the price of a bottle of milk. She became so angry that she had a stroke and died. So Hetty’s meanness finally killed her. Ned inherited half his mother’s fortune, and he spent it all on parties, holidays and expensive jewellery. He even bought a chamber pot covered with diamonds!

Language focus: so ... that ...

Look at these two sentences:

Hetty became angry. She had a stroke.

The second sentence is the result of the first sentence. We can show it like this:

Hetty became so angry that she had a stroke.

Join these sentences in the same way.

I
Hetty was mean. She refused to pay for a doctor.

2
Ned’s injury was bad. He lost his leg.

3
Hefty was rich. She could buy anything.

4
She was clever. She made millions of dollars.

5
Hefty made money easily. People called her the Witch of Wall Street.

The Past Continuous



The past continuous does not tell us whether an action was finished or not. Perhaps it was finished, perhaps not. Compare:
· Tom was cooking the dinner. (past continuous) = He was in the middle of cooking the dinner and we do not know whether he finished cooking it. 

· Tom cooked the dinner. (past simple) = He began and finished it.

We often use the past continuous (I was doing) and the past simple (I did) together to say that something happened in the middle of something else: 
· Tom burnt his hand when he was cooking the dinner. 

· I saw Jim in the park. He was sitting on the grass reading a book. 

· It was raining when I got up.

· While I was working in the garden, I hurt my back.

But to say that one thing happened after another, use the past simple:

· Yesterday evening Tom was having a bath when the phone rang. He got out of the bath and answered the phone.

Compare: 

· When Tom arrived, we were having dinner. (past continuous) = We had already started dinner before Tom arrived.

· When Tom arrived, we had dinner. (past simple) = Tom arrived and then we had dinner.

There are some verbs (for example know) which are not normally used in continuous tenses.

The past simple and past continuous

Jack was reading a book. The phone rang. He stopped reading. He answered the phone.


What happened? The phone rang. (past simple)

What was Jack doing when the phone rang (past continuous)

He was reading a book. (past continuous)

What did he do when the phone rang? (past simple)
He stopped reading and answered the phone. (past simple)
Jack began reading before the phone rang. So: When the phone rang, he was reading.




 He was reading





· I started work at 9 o'clock and finished at 4.30. At 2.30 I was working.

· It was raining when we went out. (= it started raining before we went out)

· I saw Lucy and Steve this morning. They were waiting at the bus stop.

· Jenny fell asleep while she was reading.

An embarrassing incident

One day last summer I was walking through the local park. It was a hot day and I was eating an ice cream. As I was walking past the boating lake, I saw my friends, Carol and Jim. They were taking their dog for a walk. When we met, we stopped for a chat. While we were talking, the dog suddenly jumped up and tried to get my ice cream. I pulled my hand away and unfortunately the ice cream came out of the cone. Now there was a bald man behind me. The poor man wasn’t doing any harm. He was just sitting on a bench and reading a newspaper. Well, when I pulled my hand away, the ice cream flew through the air and it landed on the man’s head. I didn’t know whether to laugh or cry, but Carol and Jim did. When I looked at them, they weren’t just laughing, they were in hysterics. But I was terribly embarrassed.

Old order, new order

Take 3, Unit 2, pg 7, no. 2

	1945
	
	Churchill – Iron curtain across Europe

	1968
	
	Kennedy visits wall – Ich bin ein Berliner

	1962
	
	New leaders for old in Prague

	1985
	
	Russian tanks go in – end of Prague Spring

	December 1989
	
	Down comes the wall – one Germany!

	November 1989
	
	Ceaucescu falls

	November 1989
	
	New leaders in USSR


New words

Unions
invasion
demonstration
leader

Reunification
tanks
revolution
riot

Listen to the tape regarding experiences in Eastern Europe. For each situation,

· Where were they?

· What did they witness?

· What were they doing at the time?

How important do you think the events were in Eastern Europe in1989? What is happening now?

While , as , when.

Study the sentences below,-

· While I was typing a report, we heard that he was dead.

· He drove past as I was walking down the avenue.

· When people were fighting in the streets, everyone became very nervous.

Practice

· We ______________________ (hear) the noise when we ______________________(drive) through the streets

· While she ______________________ (write) the report, she ______________________ (receive) the fax from Berlin
· They arrived in the city as the others______________________ (leave).

· While I ______________________ (travel) to Poland by train, someone ______________________ (steal) my passport.

· He ______________________ (read) the newspaper while he ______________________ (wait) for the bus.

 Practice

1. Carol …………………….(break) her arm last week. It……………………. (happen) when she……………………. (paint) her room. She……………………. (fall) off the ladder.

2. The train……………………. (arrive) at the station and Paula……………………. (get) off. Two friends of hers, John and Jenny, ……………………. (wait) to meet her.

3. Yesterday Sue
……………………. (walk) along the road when she ……………………. (meet) Jim. He……………………. (go) to the station to catch a train and he ……………………. (carry) a bag. They……………………. (stop) to talk for a few minutes. 

East meets West

The events in Berlin in 1989 will live in people’s memories for years to come. At midnight on November 9, the division of the city by the Berlin wall ended after twenty-eight years.

East and West Berliners wept for joy and embraced each other as they climbed over the wall or crossed over the open checkpoints. Family and friends were reunited after years of separation and the celebrations lasted throughout the night. The streets were full of singing, dancing people.

Many Berliners had come prepared and began to attack the construction with hammers. Traffic came to a standstill, but no-one wanted to go anywhere else. These people were making history. 

By dawn, small groups of Eastern and Western Berliners were sitting together, exhausted by their emotions and the celebrations. Their faces were full of the excitement of freedom and realisation that Berlin was one city again.

1 A:What ……were you doing…. (you/do) when the phone………rang…. (ring)?

   B:I  ……was watching…. (watch) television.

2 A: Was Jane busy when you went to see her?

   B: Yes, she……………………. (study).

3 A: What time……………………. (the post / arrive) this morning?

   B: It
……………………. (come) while I……………………. (have) breakfast.

4 A: Was Margaret at work today?

   B: No, she……………………. (not/go) to work. She was ill.

5 A: How fast ……………………. (you/drive) when the police…………………….(stop) you?

   B: I don’t know exactly but I…………………….
(not/drive) very fast.

6 A: ……………………. (your team / win) the football match yesterday?

   B: No, the weather was very bad, so we……………………. (not/play).

7 A: How……………………. (you/break) the window?

   B:We……………………. (play) football. I……………………. (kick) the ball and it…………………….
(hit) the window

8  A:…………………….
(you/see) Jenny last night?

    B: Yes, she……………………. (wear) a very nice jacket.

9  A: The fuel hoes ……………………. (fall-off) at 2 o’clock this morning! 

    B: Why ……………… the alarm go-off?.

10 A: I
……………………. (lose) a nozzle segment from the low pressure turbine stator yesterday.

     B: ……………………. (you/find) a replacement?

     A: Yes, there ……………………. (be) one in the store room.

More Practice

hide
get into
expect
appear
go
put down
hear
clean
help
ring
fall off
not get dressed

look
run
put on
stand

One afternoon I _______________ upstairs to have a bath. As I ________________ the bath, the telephone ________________ in the hall. I ________________ an important call, so I _________________ downstairs. There was nobody else at home, so I ________________ again. However while I _________________ in the hall with nothing on, I ________________ voices outside the front door. It was my teenage daughter and her friends, but I couldn’t get back upstairs in time. I ________________ the phone, ________________ into the living room and ________________ behind the curtains. Unfortunately, the window cleaner _________ the living room windows. When I suddenly ________________ the poor man ________________ his ladder. Fortunately, when my daughter and her friends ________________ the noise, they ________________ outside. When I ________________ out of the window, they ________________ the window cleaner. So I ________________ upstairs and _________________ a dressing gown. Luckily the window cleaner wasn’t hurt, but it was all very embarrassing.

Robin’s story

It was nearly ten years ago, so I was about 22. I was working as a builder at the time and I was also the singer with a band in my free time. Anyway, we were building some houses near Farnham in Surrey. It was about half past ten in the morning and most of the other men were having their tea break. They were listening to the radio. I was working on the roof of one of the houses. There was another guy near me. He was painting the windows of the next house.

Katherine’s story

It was two years ago now — about eight o’clock in the evening. We were sifting in the living room. My husband was sifting in an armchair. He was reading the paper, as he always did. I was sifting on the sofa. I was knifing. Our daughter was expecting a baby, you see — our first grandchild — and I was knitting a little cardigan for it. Yellow, it was. There was a quiz show on the TV. It was Strike it Lucky. Isn’t it interesting how you remember —these details? But we weren’t really watching it. Well, as I said, we were I just having a normal evening at home, when suddenly

David’s story

Oh yes, I can remember it as if it was yesterday. I was at work at the time — at the bank. I was having a meeting with my staff. We were all sitting around the big table in my office. It was a rather boring meeting, but most meetings are, I suppose. Anyway, while Sarah Harvey, the assistant manager, was speaking, my secretary came in and said, ‘There’s a phone call for you.’ Well, normally my secretary doesn’t interrupt meetings for phone calls. She takes a message. So I was surprised when she came in. ‘It’s your wife,’ she said. ‘She says it’s urgent.’ I was rather worried at this. My wife doesn’t panic easily.

More Practice

Last summer I was staying (stay) in London with my friends Sue and Dennis. One day Sue and Dennis ………………. (do) something outside and I was alone in the house. ………………. (decide) to have a bath. I ………………. (go) to the bathroom and ……………….  (turn on) the taps. Then while the bath ……………….  (fill up), ……………….  (go) to the bedroom. Unfortunately while ………………. (lie) on the bed I    ……………….   (fall) asleep. I had a very strange dream. I   ……………….     (sail) a boat along a river, when sudden I    ……………….    (come) to a waterfall. The water  ……………….   (make) a tremendous noise. While ………………. (struggle) to stop the boat I  ……………….      (wake up).

I……………….(hear) a noise downstairs. Sue and Dennis
……………….   (come) into the house. Then I ………………. (realize) that I could still hear the waterfall. It was the bath, of course. I      ………………. (jump) off the bed and     ……………….  (run) to the bathroom. There was water everywhere. As I   …………...     (rush) to turn off the taps, I……………….
(slip) in all the water and     ………………. (fall) down the stairs. So when Sue and Dennis……………….(come) into the hall, water ………………. (pour) down their stairs and I
………………. (lie) on the floor. They were not pleased and I felt terribly embarrassed.

The roof of the world

white water 

fit 
experiences 

bought 
modern 
colorful 

stop 

flew 
spectacular 

trek 

start 

trip 
sailed 

entered 
sightseeing 

journey 

city 

direct 
flight 

comfortable 

rooms 
luxuries 
ship 

adventurous 
bored

If you’re………………. with beaches, but you aren’t  ……………….   or adventurous enough to ……………….  through the Himalayas or the Sahara desert, try Alaska. Our  ……………….       to America’s largest and most northerly state was one of the greatest  ……………….       of my life.

First of all we………………. to Vancouver, in Canada. We spent two days in this very    ……………….      city, before we started our seven-day    ……………….      by ship along the Alaskan coast. The first ……………….          was Ketchikan, where we all     ……………….    lots of souvenirs —     ……………….       blankets and shirts were the most popular things. From Ketchikan, we   ……………….        to Sitka Harbour and we  ……………….         a different world. The scenery with its mountains and volcanoes was      ………………. ,    particularly the dramatic Columbia Glacier, over 80 metres high.

We spent our final day in Anchorage, Alaska’s largest……………….
We took a……………….
tour around the city and then went to the airport. There are no        ……………….  flights from Alaska to London, so we flew to Seattle to pick up the   ……………….        home. The whole holiday was wonderful. The ship was very………………. . The……………….
were quite small, but had lots of little……………….
and the food was excellent. You spend most of your time on the………………. although the more ……………….     tourists can try……………….
boat rides through the rapids on some of the rivers. The holiday is quite expensive. Prices
………………. at about £1,100.

I was angry because Tom and Ann were late.


Now Robert is at work. At midnight last light he wasn’t at work. He was in bed. He was asleep.











Tom:	Look! It’s raining again.


Ann:	Oh no, not again. It RAINED all day yesterday too.





RAINED is the past simple tense. We use the past simple to talk about actions or situations in the past.	





watched is the past simple:








I/we/you/they


he/she/it


�
watched�
�









NOTE:


If a verb ends in a consonant + Y (-by,-ry, sy etc) Y changes to “i” before –ED:





hurrY / hurrIED  studY / studIED applY / applIED	trY / trIED


try —tried 		copy —copied stop —stopped 	plan —planned











NOTE: But we do not use DID with the verb TO BE (WAS/ WERE):





Why WERE you so angry?


They WEREN’T able to come because they were so very busy.


Was Tom at work yesterday?











Pronunciation


For verbs that end in a voiceless constanant the “ED” sounds like “D”


Washed – Wash”D”	Died	Die”D”


For verbs that end in a voiced constanant the “ED” sounds like “T”


Walked – Walk”T”	Stopped – Stopp”T”


For verbs that end in “T” or “D”  the “ED” sounds like “ID”


Started – start”ID”	Decided – Decid”ID”








Yesterday Tom and Jim played tennis. They began at 10 o’clock and finished at 11o`clock.


What were they doing at 10.30?


They were playing tennis (at 10.30).





They “were playing” means that they were in the middle of playing tennis. They had started playing but they hadn’t finished.








We use the past continuous to say that someone was in the middle of doing something at a certain time. The action or situation had already started before this time but hadn’t finished.





This time last year I was living in Brazil.


What were you doing at 10.00 o`clock last night?














He answered the telephone





He stopped reading





The telephone rang





He began reading





past continuous





A:	What were you doing at 10.30?


B:	We were playing tennis.








    Beggining (10 o’clock)








      We were playing 





Jack was reading a book when the phone rang.


Were you watching television when I phoned you?


It wasn't raining when I got up.





past simple 





A: 	What did you do yesterday morning?


B: 	We played tennis. (from 10 to 11.30)





beginning (10 o’clock)	end (11.30)





			We played 


 	         (complete action)





Jack read a book yesterday. (= from beginning to end)


Did you watch the film on television last night? 


It didn't rain while we were on holiday.








